

(Version reflects Amendments of October 2002) CODE OF BYLAWS

20020093256 Filed for Record in Hamilton County, INDIANA MARY L CLARK 12-04-2002 10:13 am. AMEND DECLA 36.00

읶

THE ENCLAVE OF CARMEL HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE I

<u>Section 1.1.</u> Name. The name of this corporation shall be The Enclave of Carmel Homeowners Association, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "Association").

Section 1.2. <u>Definitions</u>. The definitions of the terms used herein shall, unless the context dearly indicates to the contrary, be the same as the definitions used in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for The Enclave of Carmel Subdivision, as recorded September 26, 1991 as Instrument No. 9125688 in the Office of the Recorder of Hamilton County, Indiana, as amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof (the "Declaration").

ARTICLE II

Purposes

Section 2.1. Purposes. This Association is a mutual benefit corporation. The Association has been formed for the purposes described in the Articles of Incorporation of this Association, filed with the Indiana Secretary of State, as amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof (the "Articles").

ARTICLE III

Powers **Powers**

Section 3.1. Powers. In furtherance of the purposes for which it is organized, the Association shall possess the powers specified herein, in the Articles, and alt of the general rights, privileges, and powers conferred by the Act.

ARTICLE IV

Definitions

The following terms as used in these Bylaws, unless the context clearly requires otherwise, shall mean the following:

<u>Section</u> <u>4.1.</u> "Board of Directors" or "Board" means the governing body of the Association elected in accordance with these Bylaws.

Section 4.2. "Common Expense" shall have the same meaning as "Maintenance and Operational Costs" at section 2.17 of the Declaration.

Section 4.3. "Developer" shall have the same meaning as "Declarant" at section 2.02 of the Declaration.

_

HAMILTON,IN
Document: BYL 2002.93256

Page 1 of 14

Printed on 10/10/2013 1:14:48 PM

Section 4.4. "Lot", referred to the plural as "Lots", shall mean any of the parcels into which the Real Estate is subdivided by the Plat (as herein defined) or, after construction of a Dwelling Unit, any parcel of land conveyed by Developer to an Owner (as hereinafter defined) upon which a Dwelling Unit has been constructed. If a Dwelling Unit is constructed upon more than one Lot (or parts thereof) as designated by the Plat, then for purposes of the Declaration the term Lot shall also mean and include (i) that parcel of land conveyed therewith and (ii) any other parcel of land otherwise designated as a Lot on the Plat whose size is affected thereby.

Section 4.5. "The Act" means the Indiana Nonprofit Corporation Act of 1991, as amended.

ARTICLE V

MEMBERSHIP

Section 5.1. Membership in Association. Each Owner of a Lot shall automatically upon becoming an Owner, be and become a Member of the Association and shall remain a Member until such time as his ownership of a Lot ceases. Membership shall terminate when any Owner ceases to be an Owner, and membership will transfer to the new Owner of a Lot, provided, however, that any person or entity wino holds the interest of any Owner in a Lot merely as security for the performance of an obligation shall not be a Member until and unless such person or entity realizes upon its security, at which time such person or entity shall automatically be and become an Owner and a Member of the Association.

Section 5.2. Voting Rights. The Association shall have one (1) class of membership. Each Owner shall be a Member. Each Member who is in good standing shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each Lot of which such Member is the Owner with respect to each matter submitted to a vote of Members upon which the Members is the Owner with respect to each matter submitted to a vote of Members upon which the Members are entitled to vote. A Member who is in arrears in the payment of any part of the Associament with respect to any Lot owned by the Members is the lowner of a particular Lot, all such persons shall be Members of the Association, but all of such persons shall have only one (1) vote for such Lot, which vote shall be exercised as they among themselves determine, but in no event shall more than one (1) vote be cast with respect to any such Lot. Whenever a quorum or majority of Members is required at a meeting to transact business or approve resolutions, such quorum or majority shall mean a quorum or majority of Lots represented by Members at the meeting. If a Lot is owned by two or more persons, any one such Owner at a meeting shall be deemed to represent such Lot without a proxy from any other Owners.

ARTICLE VI

Meetings of Members

<u>Section 6.1. Place of Meetings</u>. All meetings of the Members shall be held at such place in Hamilton or Marion Counties, Indiana as may be designated by the Board of Directors and specified in the respective notices or waivers of notice thereof.

Section 6.2. <u>Annual Meeting</u>. The annual meeting of the Members shall be held in the month of October of each calendar year for the purposes of electing Directors, examining the proposed annual budget and conducting such other business as may be considered by Members pursuant to the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws. The Board of Directors may designate another time for the annual meeting.

<u>Section 6.3.</u> <u>Special Meetings.</u> Special meetings of the Members may be called by the President, by a majority of the Board of Directors, or by written petition signed by Members

N

representing ownership of all or part of not fewer than ten (10) lots. Upon a request in writing delivered to the President or the Secretary by a person or persons entitled to call a special meeting, it shall be the duty of the President or the Secretary to give notice to the Members of such meeting, and, if such request is refused, the person or persons making the request may call a meeting by giving notice in the manner hereinafter provided. Business transacted at all special meetings shall be limited to the subjects stated in the call or waiver of notice, and matters germane thereto.

Section 6.4. Notice of Meetings. A written or printed notice stating the place, day and hour of the meeting, and in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which such meeting is called, shall be delivered or mailed by the Secretary or by the officer of person calling the meeting to each Member at such address as appears on the records of the Association not more than thirty (30) nor less than ten (10) days before the date of any meeting. Notice of any meeting are be walved by any Member in writing filed with the Secretary if the waiver sets forth in reasonable detail the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called and the time and place of the meeting. Such waivers shall be filed by the Secretary in the minutes of the meeting. Attendance at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of that meeting.

Section 6.5. Voting Lists. At least ten (10) days before each meeting of Members, the Secretary shall make a complete list of Members entitled to vote at the meeting, which list may be inspected by any Member, for any proper purpose, at any reasonable time. The address of any Member appearing upon the records of the Association shall be deemed to be the latest address of such Member appearing on the records maintained by the Secretary. Such list shall be produced and kept open at the time and place of election and subject to the inspection of any Member during the holding of such election. The Secretary will comply with the provisions of Sec. 23-1'7-11-1 of the Act, as amended.

Section 6.6. Quorum. At any meeting of the Members, Members entitled to vote at such meeting and representing ownership of all or part of fifteen (15) Lots present in person or by proxy executed in writing, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except as otherwise provided by law or in sections 6.04 and 6.05 of the Declaration. In the absence of a quorum, the Members present in person or by proxy, by a majority vote and without notice, may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present. At any such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business may be transacted for which notice was originally given. The Members present at a duly organized meeting may continue to do business until adjournment notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough Members or leave less than a quorum, provided that any meeting shall be adjourned when the remaining Members represent fewer than eight (8) Lots.

Section 6.7. Voting Rights. Except in those instances set forth in the Declaration where a specific number of votes is required, a majority of the votes cast at a meeting of the Members, duly called and at which a quorum is present, shall be sufficient to take or authorize action upon any matter that may properly come before a meeting, provided that Members representing not fewer than eight (8) Lots shall be required to vote in the affirmative to adopt any resolution.

<u>Section 6.8. Proxies.</u> A Member may vote either in person or by his duly authorized and designated attorney-in-fact. Where voting is by proxy, the Member shall **designate** his attorney-in-fact in writing, delivered to an officer of the Association prior to the commencement of the meeting. No proxy shall be valid after eleven (11) months from the date of its execution unless a longer time is expressly provided in the proxy.

Section 6.9. Action Without a Meeting. Any action required by the Act to be taken at a meeting of the Members, or any action which may be taken at a meeting of the Members, may be taken without a meeting, if prior to the action, a consent in writing setting forth the action so taken is signed by all of the Members entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof, and

u

such written consent is filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Members. Such consent shall have the same effect as a unanimous vote of the Members.

ARTICLE VII

Board of Directors

Section 7.1. Management. The business and affairs of the Association shall be governed and managed by the Board of Directors. The number of Directors shall be six (6). No person shall be eligible to serve as a member of the Board of Directors unless such person is, or is deemed in accordance with these Bylaws to be, an Owner and a Member in good standing.

<u>Section 7.2. Additional Qualifications.</u> If an Owner consists of more than one person or is a partnership, corporation, trust or other legal entity, then one of the persons constituting the multiple Owner, or a partner, an officer or trustee, respectively, shall be eligible to serve on the Board of Directors, except that no single Lot may be represented on the Board of Directors by more than one person at a time.

Section 7.3. Election: Terms of Office and Vacancy

(a) At each annual meeting of the Members of the Association there shall be an election of Directors. As provided in Section 6.4 of Article VI, the notice of the annual meeting of the Members of the Association shall be mailed to each Member not more than 30 days prior to the scheduled date of the annual meeting. Such notice shall include the names of the candidates recommended by the Nominating Committee who have agreed to be nominated for the Office of Director and to serve if elected. The notice also shall include a request that nominations from Members for the Office of Director be submitted to the Secretary within 14 days of the date of mailing of the meeting notice. The Secretary shall contact each nominee for Director recommended by a Member in order to obtain the consent of such nominee to be nominated and to serve on the Board of Directors if elected at the annual meeting. Not less than 10 days prior to the scheduled date of the meeting, the Secretary shall mail to Members proxy forms including the names of all the Members nominated to serve on the Board of Directors will be made for nominations to be made from the floor during the annual meeting. Members holding proxies shall vote for the Directors and to serve if elected. If there are nominated from the floor during the annual meeting. Members holding proxies shall vote for the Directors designated on the proxies they hold, and may vote in their discretion for nominees that were nominated from the floor during the annual meeting in the event an insufficient number of nominations had been received prior to the meeting. If there are more nominated from the floor shall vote by their respective Lots, with one vote and ballot per Lot Each ballots. Members shall vote by their respectives a majority of the votes cast, then the persons receiving the holder majorities are elected.

(b) Each Director shall be elected for a term of two (2) years, except that at the election of Directors at the first meeting of Members, three (3) of the Directors shall be elected to serve terms of one (1) year each and three (3) of the Directors shall be elected to serve terms of two (2) years each. Thereafter, at each annual meeting of the Members there shall be three Directors elected who shall serve for terms of two (2) years each. Directors may serve successive terms. Each Director shall hold office throughout the elected term and until a successor is elected and qualified.

_

(c) Any vacancy or vacancies occurring in the Board shall be filled by a vote of a majority of the remaining Directors or by vote of the Members if a Director is removed in accordance with Section 7.8 of this Article VII. The Director so filling a vacancy shall serve until the next annual meeting of the Members and until his successor is elected and qualified. At the first annual meeting following any such vacancy, a Director shall be elected for the balance of the term of the Director so removed or in respect to which there has otherwise been a vacancy.

Section 7.4. Annual Meeting. The Board of Directors shall meet each year immediately after the annual meeting of the Members, at the place where such meeting of the Members has been held, for the purpose of organization, election of officers, and consideration of any other business that may properly be brought before the meeting. No notice shall be necessary for the holding of this annual meeting. If such meeting is not held as above provided, the election of officers may be held at any subsequent meeting of the board specifically called in the manner provided in Section 7.5. A Director may participate in any meeting of the Board of Directors by or through the use of any means of communication by which all Directors participating may simultaneously hear each other during the meeting.

Section 7.5. Regular and Special Meetings

(a) Regular Meetings. The Board of Directors shall meet quarterly at a time and place to be decided by the Directors at the Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors, subject to change by majority vote of the Directors from time to time. If there is no important business to be conducted, the President, with the concurrence of the Secretary and Treasurer, may carned not more than one regular meeting in a two-quarter period. Such regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without notice or upon such notice as may be fixed by the Directors. A member of the Board of Directors may participate in any meeting of the Board by means of a conference telephone or similar communications equipment by which all persons participating in the meeting can communicate with each other and participation by these means constitutes presence in person at the meeting.

(b) <u>Special Meetings.</u> Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President and shall be called by order thereof upon the written request of not fewer than three (3) of the Directors, which request shall set forth the business to be conducted at such meeting.

Section 7.6. Notice of Meetings. Notice of all meetings of the Board of Directors, except as herein provided, shall be given by mailing the same at least ten (10) days before the meeting to the usual business or residence address of the Director as shown upon the records of the Association. Notice of any meeting of the Board may be waived by any Director In writing filed with the Secretary if the waiver sets forth in reasonable detail the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called and the time and place of the meeting. All such waivers shall be filed by the Secretary with the minutes of the meeting. Attendance at any meeting of the Board shall constitute a waiver of notice of that meeting. Any meeting of the Board may adjoum from time to time to reconvene at the same place or some other place. No notice need be given of any such adjourned meeting.

<u>Section 7.7. Quorum.</u> A quorum of the Board of Directors at any annual or special meeting of the Board shall be a majority of the duly qualified Directors then occupying office, but in no event less than three (3) Directors, except that in filling vacancies a majority of the remaining Directors shall constitute a quorum. The act of a majority of the Directors present at a meeting, who constitute a quorum, shall be the act of the Board unless otherwise provided by the Act. In the absence of a quorum, the Directors present may, by majority vote, adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present.

. .

Section 7.8. Action Without a Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting if prior to such action a written consent to such action is signed by all of the Directors and such written consent is filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board of Directors.

Section 7.9. Removal of Directors. A Director or Directors may be removed with or without cause by vote of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast at a special meeting of the Members duly called and constituted for such purpose. In such case, a successor or successors shall be elected at the same meeting from eligible Members nominated at the meeting. The Director or Directors so elected shall serve until the next annual meeting of the Members and until a successor or successors are duly elected and qualified.

Section 7.10. <u>Duties of the Board of Directors.</u> The Board of Directors shall be the governing body of the Association representing all of the Members and be responsible for the functions and duties of the Association, Including, but not limited to, providing for the administration of the Common Areas and Facilities, the management, maintenance, repair, upkeep and replacement of the Lake. collection of the Assessments, and disbursement of the

Maintenance and Operational Costs. The Board may, on behalf of the Association, employ a reputable and recognized professional property management agent (herein called the "Managing Agent") upon such terms as the Board shall find, in its discretion, reasonable and customary, provided any such management agreement shall be for a term of three (3) years or less and shall provide that any such agreement may be terminated without cause by either party upon ninety (90) days written notice to the other party. The Managing Agent, if one is employed, shall assist the Board in carrying out its duties, which include, but are not limited to:

(a) snow removal;

- (b) assessment and collection from the Owners of each Owner's respective share of the Maintenance and Operational Costs;
- (c) preparation of the proposed annual budget, a copy of which will be mailed or delivered to each Owner at the same time as the notice of annual meeting is mailed or delivered:
- (d) preparing and delivering annually to the Owners a full accounting of all receipts and expenses incurred in the prior year: such accounting shall be delivered to each Owner simultaneously with delivery of the proposed annual budget for the current year,
- (e) keeping a current, accurate, and detailed record of receipts and expenditures affecting the business and affairs of the Association, specifying and itemizing the Maintenance and Operational Costs: all records and vouchers (Including current copies of the Declaration, Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws and Rules) shall be available for examination by an Owner, Mortgagee, insurer or guarantor of a first mortgage at any time during normal business hours;
- (f) procuring and maintaining for the benefit of the Association and the Board the insurance coverage required under these Bylaws and such other insurance coverage as the Board, in its sole discretion, may deem necessary or advisable; and,
- (g) furnishing upon request of any Mortgagee, insurer or guarantor of a first mortgage, a financial statement for the immediately preceding fiscal year.

Section 7.11. Powers of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall have such powers as are reasonable and necessary to accomplish the performance of their duties. These powers include, but are not limited to the power.

- (a) to employ a Managing Agent to assist the Board in performing its duties.
- (b) to purchase, lease or otherwise obtain for the Association, to enable it to perform its functions and duties, such equipment, materials, labor and services as may be necessary in the judgment of the Board of Directors.
- (c) to employ legal counsel, architects, contractors, accountants and others as in the judgment of the Board of Directors may be necessary or desirable in connection with the business and affairs of the Association;
- (d) to employ, designate, discharge and remove such personnel as in the judgment of the Board of Directors may be necessary for the Board of Directors to perform its duties;
- (e) to include the costs of all of the above and foregoing as maintenance and Operational Cost and to pay all of such costs there from;
- (f) to open and maintain a bank account or accounts in the name of the Association, and ${\color{black}}$
- (g) to promulgate, adopt, revise, amend and alter from time to time such additional rules and regulations with respect to use, occupancy, operation and enjoyment of the Plat, the Lake and the Common Areas and Facilities (in addition to those set forth in these Bylaws) as the Board, in its discretion, deems necessary or advisable; provided, however, that copies of any such additional rules and regulations so adopted by the Board shall be promptly delivered or mailed to all Owners; and,
- (h) to establish and oversee such committees as the Directors may from time to time determine are necessary or desirable.

Section 7.12. Indemnification of Directors, Officers, Agents, Employees and Others

(a) The Association shall indemnify any person who is or was a Director, officer, employee, or agent of the Association to the fullest extent permitted under the Act. In addition, the Association shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend any person, and that person's heirs, assigns, and legal representatives, made a party to any action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that such person is or was a Director of the Association, against the reasonable expenses, including attorneys' fees, actually and necessarily incurred by that person in connection with the defense of such action, suit or proceeding, or in connection with any appeal therein, expect as otherwise specifically provided herein in relation to matters as to which is shall be adjudged in such action, suit or proceeding that such Director is liable for gnoss negligence or misconduct in the performance of that person's duties. The Association shall also reimburse to any such Director the reasonable costs of settlement of or judgment rendered in any action, suit or proceeding, if it shall be found by a majority vote of the Owners that such Director was not guity of gross negligence or misconduct. Each person seeking indemnification of the Association in accordance with the Act. Notwithstanding the above, the Association shall not be permitted to indemnify a Director until the Board of Directors shall have determined that, in accordance with the rules set

.

forth at Indiana Code Section 23-17-16-12 as amended, the Director seeking indemnification has met the standard of conduct set forth in Indiana Code Section 23-17-6-8, as amended. No Director, officer, employee or agent shall be entitled to seek indemnification in any court conducting the proceeding in question or in any other court of competent jurisdiction unless and until such indemnification shall have been denied by the Association.

- (b) The Association shall have the power to enter into agreements with officers, employees, and agents of the Association, whether or not they shall be Directors, to provide indemnification and for payment of advance expenses to such officers, employees, or agents.
- (c) The Association shall have the power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a Director, officer, employee, or agent of the Association, or is or was serving at the request of the Association as a director, officer, employee, or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise against any liability asserted against him and incurred by him in any such capacity, or arising out of his status as such, whether or not

the Association would have the power to indemnify him against such liability under the provisions of this Article.

- (d) The rights of indemnification provided under this Article are not exhaustive and shall be in addition to any rights to which a Director or officer may otherwise be entitled by contract or as a matter of law. Irrespective of the provisions of this Article, the Association may, at any time and from time to time, Indemnify Directors, officers, employees and other persons to the full extent permitted by the Act, or any successor law, as then In effect, whether with regard to past or future matters.
- (e) All obligations of the Association under this Article shall survive the termination of a Director's or officer's service in any capacity covered by this Article.
- (f) The provisions of this Article shall inure to the benefit of each Director or officer and his respective heirs, personal representatives, and assigns and to the Association, its successors and assigns.
- (g) In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Article shall, for any reason, be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, lilegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this Article, but this Article shall be construed as If such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision or provisions had never been contained herein.

Section 7.13. Insurance. The Board of Directors shall have the authority to and shall obtain insurance for all of the structures located in the Common Area, whether owned or leased by the Association, against loss or damage by fire or other hazards commonly insured against In similar properties in an amount sufficient to cover the full replacement cost of any repair or reconstruction work in the event of damage or destruction from any insured hazard, and shall also obtain a broad form public liability policy covering all damage or injury caused by the negligence of the Association or any of its agents, in addition, the Board of Directors shall authorize and direct the President to obtain Directors and Officers Insurance in form and amount satisfactory to the Board to indemnify the officers, Directors, employees, and agents of the Association from liability arising out of or in connection with the performance of their duties and powers which are described in sections 7.10 and 7.11 hereinabove and generally herein.

20

Page 8 of 14

Section 7.14, Bond. The Board of Directors shall have the authority to provide blanket fidelity bonds for the Managing Agent (if any), the Treasurer of the Association, and such other officers or Directors of the Association that handle or are responsible for funds indemnifying the Association against larceny, theft, embezzlement, forgery, misappropriation, wrongful abstraction, will misapplication, and other acts of fraud or dishonesty, in such sums and with such sureties as may be approved by the Board of Directors (provided, however. In no event shall the aggregate amount of the bond be less than a sum equal to three (3) months aggregate assessments on all Dwelling Units) and any such bond shall specifically include protection for any Insurance proceeds received for any reason by the Board. Fidelity bonds shall name the Association as an obligee and shall contain waivers of all defenses based upon the exclusion of persons serving without compensation from the definition of "employees" or similar terms or expressions. Such bonds shall provide that they may not be canceled or substantially modified for any reason without at least ten (10) days prior written notice to the Association. Unless required by the Board of Directors to be provided at the expense of the Managing Agent, the expense of any such bonds shall be a Maintenance and Operational Cost.

ARTICLE VII

OFFICERS

<u>Section 8.1. Officer.</u> The Board of Directors shall elect or appoint the officer of the Association. The principal officers of the Association shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, a Treasurer, an Assistant Secretary, and an Assistant Treasurer The Board of Directors may elect such other officers, who shall not be principal officers, as may be deemed desirable by the Board of Directors at that time, and for such terms of office and with such duttes as the Board may choose. Each of the principal officers shall be a Director. If the Board of Directors shall elect other officers, they need not be Directors and a Director may hold such office in addition to the Director's principal office.

Section 8.2. Election and Term of Office. The principal officers of the Association shall be elected annually from among and by the Board of Directors at the regular annual meeting of the. Board of Directors held immediately following the annual meeting of the Members. Each officer shall hold office until his successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified, unless earlier removed by the Board of Directors. All officers and agents can be removed at any time by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors then in office.

<u>Section</u> <u>8.3. President.</u> The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association and shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors. Under the Board's direction the President shall have general supervision over the affairs of the Association and over the other officers. The President shall perform all such other duties as are incident to this office.

Section 8.4. <u>Vice President</u> The Vice President shall perform the duties specified in Section 8.3 of this Article In the absence or disability of the President. In addition, the Vice President shall perform duties and assignments which may from time to time be delegated by the President or the Board.

Section 8.5. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have custody of all monies and securities of the Association and shall give a bond in such sums and with such surety as the Directors may require, conditioned upon the faithful performance of such office. The Treasurer shall maintain records of the Members in good standing and provide such information to the Secretary upon request. The Treasurer shall be responsible for collection of all Assessments due the Association

9

Page 9 of 14

and shall perform a timely review of the records of the Managing Agent, if any. The Treasurer shall perform all such other duties as are incident to this office.

Section 8.6. Assistant <u>Treasurer.</u> The Assistant Treasurer shall perform the duties specified in Section 8.5 of this Article in the absence or disability of the Treasurer and such other duties as may be delegated by the Treasurer, the President, or the Board of Directors.

Section 8.7. Secretary. The Secretary shall have the responsibility for providing that notices required by the Act, the Articles, the Declaration, or these Bylaws be Issued, and shall provide the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors be adequately kept. The Secretary shall maintain a list of the Directors and their mailing addresses, be responsible for all corporate books, records and papers, any and all written contracts of the Association, and be custodian of the corporate seal. The Secretary shall maintain a current roster of all Lots, Owners, and Members, including whether such Members are in good standing, and shall prepare a list of Members eligible to vote at each meeting of the Members. The Secretary shall perform all such other duties as are incident to this office.

Section 8.8. Assistant Secretary. The Assistant Secretary shall perform the duties specified in Section 8.7 of this Article in the absence or disability of the Secretary and such other duties as may be delegated by the Secretary, the President, or the Board of Directors.

Section 8.9. Vacancies. Vacancies among elected and appointed officers occurring during the annual terms thereof shall be filled by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IX

Architectural Control

Section 9.1. The Architectural Review Board. As a standing committee of the Association, there shall be, and hereby is, established an Architectural Review Board consisting of three (3) or more persons as may, from time to time, be provided in the Bylaws. The Architectural Review Board shall be appointed by the Board of Directors or if not so appointed the Architectural Review Board shall be appointed at the first meeting of the Board of Directors and shall be appointed at each subsequent annual meeting of the Board. Members of the appointed review Board may be added, replaced, or removed by the Board of Directors by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at any time and without notice. All appointments to the Architectural Review Board expire upon the convening of the first annual meeting of the Directors following their appointment. Except upon the approval of a majority of the Members at an annual meeting, the members of the Architectural Review Board expire upon the approval of a majority of the Members at an annual meeting, the members of the Architectural Review Board may not serve more than two (2) consecutive terms of one year each.

Section 9.2. Purposes. The primary purpose of the Architectural Review Board is to enforce the terms, conditions and restrictions of Articles VII (Lot Development) and VIII (Use and Maintenance of Lots) of the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for the Enclave of Carmel Subdivision. In the performance of this responsibility, the Architectural Review Board shall make recommendations to the Board of Directors for the regulation of the external design, appearance, use, location and maintenance of the Development and of improvements thereon in such manner as to preserve and enhance values and to maintain a harmonious relationship among structures, improvements, and the natural vegetation and topography; it shall be responsible for periodically reviewing the Declaration and compliance therewith by all Owners, any builder, and the Declarant: it shall initially hear and review all requests for opinions, improvements, and other matters involving the improvements located within the Development;

=

following such hearings. It shall make findings and recommendations to the Board of Directors for their final decision on all such matters; and, If and when the Board of Directors shall obtain the authority of the Declarant, whether in whole or in part, to administer the Declaration in any way, It may be delegated by the Board of Directors such authority and responsibility as the Board of Directors may determine, provided that all of its recommendations shall be reviewed, rejected, modified, and/or approved by the Board of Directors prior to Implementation. All recommendations by the Architectural Review Board shall be in writing and accompanied by such findings and evidence as may be reasonably required or requested by the Board of Directors to make a knowledgeable review of the recommendations. When the Architectural Review Board has held a hearing on a complaint, a request for Improvement or physical change to an Owner's property of the Common Area or Facilities, or any other matter involving a dispute and in which the Architectural Review Board has by vote made a recommendation affecting the rights of an Owner, the Architectural Review Board shall indicate the number of votes in favor of the recommendation and number of votes in opposition.

Section 9.3. Procedures. In the event the Architectural Review Board falls to make its recommendation to the Board of Directors within 30 days following the conclusion of any hearing or the proper and complete submission of any initial written request for approval, the parties at interest, or any of them, may request that the Board of Directors conduct its own hearing or grant the request for approval. In such event, and with respect to hearings, the Board of Directors shall hold its own hearing, allowing only such evidence as was submitted at the hearing before the Architectural Review Board, and shall render its decision within 30 days after the conclusion of the hearing. With respect to requests for approval, the requesting party shall present the same materials to the Board of Directors as were presented to the Architectural Review Board and, in the event the Board of Directors shall fail to reject the request for approval within 30 days after receipt of such materials, approval will be deemed granted by the Board of Directors.

Section 9.4. Maintenance of Architectural Control. The Association may not waive or abandon the procedure for regulating and enforcing the architectural design or extentor appearance of the Dwelling Units nor for maintaining the Lake without the prior written approval of all Owners and all mortgagees whose mortgage interests have been made known to the Board of Directors in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws.

ARTICLE X

Nominating Committee

Section 10.1. The Nominating Committee. As a standing committee of the Association, there shall be, and hereby is, established a Nominating Committee consisting of three (3) persons. The Nominating Committee shall be comprised of the Secretary of the Board and two other members appointed by the President, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors. At least one of the appointed members of the Nominating Committee shall be a Director. The members of the Nominating Committee shall be appointed at each annual meeting of the Board of Directors (first meeting of new board). Members of the Nominating Committee may be added, replaced, or removed by the Board of Directors by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at any time and without notice. All appointments to the Nominating Committee expire upon the convening of the annual meeting of the Directors following their appointment. Except upon the approval of a majority of the Members at an annual meeting, the members of the Nominating Committee may not serve more than two (2) consecutive terms of one year each.

Section 10.2. Purpose. The Purpose of the Nominating Committee is to recommend to the Board of Directors candidates for nomination for the Office of Director at the annual meeting of the Members of the Association. As provided in Article VII, Section 7.3, nominations for the Office of Director also may be made by Members qualified to vote at the annual meeting of Members of the Association.

_

Section 10.3. Procedures. The Nominating Committee shall make recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding candidates for the Office of Director not less than 60 days prior to the scheduled date of the annual meeting of Members of the Association. The Nominating Committee shall recommend for nomination a sufficient number of candidates to fill the vacancies to be filled at the annual meeting of the Members of the Association. Upon receipt of such recommendations by the Board, the Secretary shall contact each nominee for Directors if elected at the annual meeting of the Nominating Committee shall make additional recommendations to the Board, the Nominating Committee shall be completed not less than 45 days prior to the scheduled date of the annual meeting of the Members of the Association. As provided in Section 6.4 date of the annual meeting of the Members of the Association. As provided in Section 6.4 does not notice shall include the names of the scheduled date of each Member not more than 30 days prior to the scheduled date of the annual meeting of the Members of the Association shall be meeting. Such notice shall include the names of the candidates recommended by the Nominating Committee who have agreed to be nominated for the Office of Director and to serve if elected. The notice also shall include a request that nominations from Members for the Office of Director be submitted to the Secretary within 14 days of the date of malling of the meeting notice. The Secretary shall contact each nominee to be nominated and to serve on the Board of Directors if elected at the annual meeting. Pursuant to Section 7.3 of Article VII, not less than 10 days prior to the scheduled date of the meeting, the Secretary shall mail to Members proory forms including the names of all the Members nominated to serve on the Board of Directors.

Article XI

<u>Assessments</u>

Section 11.1. Power to Levy. The Association shall have the power to levy regular and special assessments against each Owner and each Lot.

<u>Section</u> 11.2. Assessment Assessments shall be made pursuant to the provisions of the Declaration.

Section 11.3. Implied Powers. Notwithstanding anything contained herein or in the Declaration, the Act, or the Articles to the contrary, the Board of Directors, acting on behalf of the Association, shall have all powers necessary and appropriate to collect and enforce collection of all Assessments which may be lawfully imposed by the Association on the Owners of any Lot, including the power to enforce judgments against Owners, retain legal coursel, and collect interest and court costs from Owners. In so doing, the Board of Directors may delegate some or all of such power and authority to one or more agents, Managing Agents, collection agents, and/or legal counsel, who may act on behalf of the Association and appear in court for the Association. Until such delegation shall have occurred, the President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer, singly, may represent the Association and the Board of Directors in any court proceeding for the enforcement and/or collection of Assessments from Owners without farther action by the Board of Directors being required.

ARTICLE XII

Contracts, Checks, Deposits and Funds

Section 12.1. Contracts. The President, with the attestation of the Secretary, shall have the apparent authority to enter into all contracts in the name of the Association which are permitted by the Declaration, the Articles, or these Bylaws, except that contracts for the sale,

transfer, mortgaging, or other encumbering of the title to the Common Property or Facilities shall require approval by Seventy-five Percent (75%) of the Members at a special meeting or annual meeting and the approval of such mortgagees as shall be required pursuant to the Declaration. The Board of Directors, by unanimous consent, may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents of the Association, in addition to the officers so authorized by these Bylaws, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Association, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. In such event, the Members shall be advised at their next meeting of such delegation and the Managing Agent shall be immediately advised in writing.

Section 12.2. Checks, Drafts, etc. All checks, drafts, or orders for the payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Association, shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Association and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors; provided, however, that each such resolution shall require the signature of at least one (1) principal officer (the President, Vice President or Treasurer). In the event that there is no managing agent, each such resolution shall require that not fewer than two (2) signatures by officers, with at least one (1) being a principal officer shall be required for all transfers of money of the Association. Unless the Board of Directors shall resolve by unanimous consent to the contrary, all checks shall be signed by any two of the following: the President, Vice President, and Treasurer.

Section 12.3. Deposits. All funds of the Association shall be deposited from time to time to the credit or the Association in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select.

ARTICLE-XIII

Books and Records

Section 13.1. Books and Records. The Association shall keep correct and complete books and records of account and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings of its Board of Directors and committees having any of the authority of the Board of Directors. All books and records of the Association may be inspected by any Director, or his agent or attorney for any proper purpose at any reasonable time.

ARTICLE XIV

<u>Amendments</u>

Section 14.1. Amendment. As set forth in the Articles, the power to alter, amend, add to, and repeal the Bylaws of the Association is hereby vested in the Board of Directors, except with respect to any provision of these Bylaws which by law or the Articles or these Bylaws requires action by the Members, which power shall be exercised in accordance with the requirements of these Bylaws and the Act. The Board of Directors may recommend amendments in the Articles to the Members, but shall have no power to amend the Articles. Those provisions of these Bylaws which require approval by a majority of the Members at a regular, special, or annual meeting thereof for amendment are as follows:

- (a) Section 5.1: Membership in Association
- (b) Section 5.2: Voting Rights
- (c) Section 7.3: Election; Terms of Office; Vacancy
- (d) Section 7.9: Removal of Directors

13

- Section 7.11: Indemnification of Directors. Officers, Agents, Employees, and Others
- (f) Section 9.1: Limitation on more than two (2) consecutive terms on the Architectural Review Board
- (g) Section 9.4: Maintenance of Architectural Control
- (h) Section 11.1: Power to Levy
- (i) Section 12.1: Contracts
- (j) Section 12.2: Checks, Drafts, etc.

All other provisions of these Bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of the total number of Directors elected to and then holding office.

ARTICLE XV

Miscellaneous

Section 15.2. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day of January and end on the last day of December in each year.

<u>Section 15.2.</u> <u>Conflicting Provisions.</u> In the event of direct conflict between the terms and provisions of these Bylaws, the Declaration, the Articles, and/or the Act, the provisions of the Act shall control those of the Declaration, those of the Declaration shall control those of the Articles, and the provisions of the Articles shall control those of these Bylaws.

<u>Section 15.3. Parliamentary Procedure.</u> Roberts Rules of Order, Newly Revised, shall govern the procedures of all meetings of the Members, the Board of Directors, and all duly constituted committees. The chairperson of the meeting shall function as the parliamentarian unless the chairperson shall appoint another person to do so.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, being all of the duty elected members of the Board of Directors of The Enclave of Carmel Homeowners Association Inc. hereby certify that the above and foregoing amended Bylaws of the Association were duty adopted at a meeting of the Members of the Enclave Homeowners Association held on the 29th day of October, 2002.

Don Hecht, President

\∈₽A.			
REPARED BY DAN HECKT	Craig Wierenga, Secretary	Bill Barlow, Director "At Large" Bill Balow	Bob Hughes, Vice President Solv Nuglia
Helphy L. Don't and Marson Cry abolis	444	A CONTRACTOR OF THE CONTRACTOR	

70



AMENDMENT TO THE DECLARATION OF COVENAN CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE ENCLAVE OF CARMEL SUBDIVISION

200300104496
Filed for Record in HAMILTON COLNTY INDIANG JENNIFER J HAYDEN
10-07-2003 At 10:30 am.
AMEND DECLA 16:00

THIS AMENDMENT TO THE DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE ENCLAVE OF CARMEL SUBDIVISION ("Amendment") is made as of this 29th day of September, 2003 by The Enclave of Carmel Homeowners Association, Inc., an Indiana Corporation, witnesses as follows:

WHEREAS, the original Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for the Enclave of Carmel Subdivision was executed on September 24, 1991 by the Declarant, The Enclave Development Company, Inc., and recorded on September 26, 1991 as Instrument No. 9125568 in the Office of the Recorder of Hamilton County, Indiana (the "Declaration"); and

WHEREAS, Section 11.04 of the Declaration permits the amendment of the Declaration by an instrument approved and signed by at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the then Owners; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has reviewed and affirmed the following Amendment to the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for the Enclave of Carmel Subdivision, which was evidenced by an instrument signed by in excess of seventy-five percent (75%) of the Owners;

Homeowners Association, Inc. hereby amends the Declaration as follows: NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to the foregoing, The Enclave 으 Carmel

Article VIII, Section 8.04 is amended to read as follows:

Section 8.04 Signs. During the Development Period, no "for sale" or other advertising signs of any kind (other than interior window signs) shall be displayed on any Lot without the prior written approval of Declarant. Thereafter, no sign of any kind shall be displayed to public view on any Lot, except that one two-sided sign (not exceeding six (6) square feet per side) may be displayed at any time for the purpose of advertising the property for sale, without the prior written approval of the Board of Directors.

2. Article VIII is amended by adding a new Section 8.14 to read as follows:

Section 8.14 Restriction on Leases

The following restriction shall apply to the lease or rental of any Dwelling Unit:

residents within the Property share the same proprietary interest in and respect for the (a) Prohibition Against Leasing of Dwelling Units. In order to insure that the

HAMILTON,IN
Document: RES AMD 2003.104496

Page 1 of 4

Printed on 10/10/2013 1:14:53 PM

exclusive occupancy by one or more non-owner tenants. For purposes of this Section 8.14, a Dwelling Unit is exclusively occupied by one or more non-owner tenants, if the Owner of the Dwelling Unit does not also correspondingly occupy the Dwelling Unit as Dwelling Units and the Common Areas, no Dwelling Units may be leased or rented for his/her principal place of residence.

- (b) Effective Date of Lease Conditions. These leasing restrictions shall not apply to any Dwelling Unit of a Dwelling Unit Owner who, at the time of recording this provision, is renting or leasing said Dwelling Unit for exclusive occupancy by one or more non-owner tenants, so long as such Dwelling Unit continues to be owned by the same thereof provided in such lease so long as the occupants remain the same these restrictions. However, in this latter circumstance, these restrictions shall not apply to any lease executed prior to the effective date of these restrictions or to any renewals deliver a copy of any such lease to the Board or to comply with the conditions described in Section 8.14(d) shall result in said Dwelling Unit Owner's Dwelling Unit being subject to deleted. In addition, any lease subject to this exception must comply with the conditions deliver a copy of the executed lease which is in effect at the time to the Board within thirty Dwelling Unit Owner and continues to be leased to and exclusively occupied by the same described in Section 8.14(d) hereof. ease within thirty (30) days after its execution. Such copy may have the rental amount 30) days after the recording of this document and shall fumish a copy of any subsequent non-owner tenant(s). In order for this exception to apply, said Dwelling Unit Owner must in this latter circumstance, these restrictions shall not apply Failure of such a Dwelling Unit Owner to timely
- (c) Exception for Special Circumstance. The Board may, in its sole discretion, grant an exception to the lease restrictions to a Dwelling Unit Owner, for not more than one (1) year at a time, if the Board determines that:
- (1) the Dwelling Unit Owner has owned and occupied the Dwelling Unit for at least one (1) year prior to the date the Owner requests the exception; and (2) the Dwelling Unit Owner will be unable to occupy the Dwelling Unit for a temporary period of time for employment related reasons, health related reasons

a temporary period of time for employment related reasons, health related reasons or other reasons acceptable in the sole discretion of the Board.

Any lease subject to this exception must comply with the conditions described in

Section 8.14(d) hereof.

(d) General Lease Conditions. All leases, including renewals, shall be in writing, and no lease shall be entered into for a term of less than one (1) year without the prior written approval of the Board. No portion of any Dwelling Unit other than the entire Dwelling Unit may be leased for any period. No subleasing is permitted. No Owner will be permitted to be made expressly subject and subordinate in all respects to the terms of the Declaration or other charges due to the Association at the time the lease is entered. ease or rent his/her Dwelling Unit, if the Owner is delinquent in paying any assessments All leases shall

provide for direct action by the Association and/or any Owner against the tenant with or without joinder of the Owner of such Dwelling Unit. The Owner shall supply copies of the Declaration, By-laws and rules and regulations to the tenant prior to the effective date of the lease. In addition, the Board shall have the power to promulgate such additional rules By-laws and any rules and regulations promulgated by the Board, as amended, to the same extent as if the tenant were an Owner and a member of the Association; and shall and regulations as, in its discretion, may be necessary or appropriate concerning leasing

- (e) Owner is Still Liable. No lease shall provide, or be interpreted or construed to provide, for a release of the Owner from his/her responsibility to the Association and the other Owners for compliance with the provisions of the Declaration, By-laws and any rules and regulations promulgated by the Board, or from the Owner's liability to the Association for payments of assessments. No lease shall provide, or be interpreted or construed to
- lease within thirty (30) days after submission by the applicant, the form of the lease shall be deemed approved. A copy of each executed lease by an Owner (which may have the rental amount deleted) shall be provided to the Board by the Owner within thirty (30) days (f) Approval of Form of Lease. Any Owner desiring to enter into a lease for his/her Dwelling Unit shall submit the form of the proposed lease to the Board (which form need not include the identity of the tenant or the rental amount) for review for compliance with the requirements of this Section 8.14. The Board may employ an attorney in connection after execution. expense so incurred. In the event the Board fails to approve or disapprove the form of the with any such review, and a reasonable fee may be charged to the applicant to offset the
- improper conduct. (g) Violations. If any Owner leases or rents his/her Dwelling Unit in violation of the provisions of this Section 8.14, the Association may bring a legal action to enjoin the
- (h) <u>Institutional Mortgages</u>. The provisions set forth shall not apply to any institutional mortgage holder of any Dwelling Unit which comes into possession of the mortgage holder by reason of any remedies provided by law or in equity or in such mortgage or as a result of a foreclosure sale or other judicial sale or as a result of any proceeding, arrangement or deed in lieu of foreclosure.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Enclave of Carmel Homeowners Association, Inc. has executed this Amendment as of the date first written above

THE ENCLAVE OF CARMEL HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

Don Hecht, President

ω

Attest:

Craig Wierenga, Secretary

STATE OF INDIANA

) SS: COUNTY OF HAMILTON)

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared Don Hecht, President of The Enclave of Carmel Homeowners Association, Inc. and Crag Wierenga, Secretary of The Enclave of Carmel Homeowners Association, Inc. who acknowledged the execution of the foregoing Amendment to the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for the Enclave of Carmel Subdivision.

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal this 300day of 2010 , 2003.

My Commission expires:

.

February 7, 2010

TATES

Notary Public

Stacy 11 Hall Printed

Residing in Ham 1 Han County, Indiana

This instrument prepared by Stephen R. Buschmann, Attorney at Law, Thrasher Buschmann Griffith & Voelkel, P.C. 151 N. Delaware Street, Suite 1900, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

4

Page 4 of 4



2012035090 AMENDMENT \$14.00 06/25/2012 01:18:09P 2 PGS Mary L. Clark HAMILTON County Recorder IN Recorded as Fresented

AMENDMENT TO THE CODE OF BYLAWS OF THE ENCLAVE OF CARMEL HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

THIS AMENDMENT TO THE CODE OF BYLAWS OF THE ENCLAVE OF CARMEL HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. ("Amendment") IS MADE AS OF THIS 26th day of October, 2011 by the Enclave Board of Directors for The Enclave of Carmel Homeowners Association,

Inc, an Indiana Corporation, witnesses as follows: WHEREAS, the Code of Bylaws of the Enclave of Carmel Homeowners Association was recorded on December 4, 2002 as Instrument No. 200200093256 in the Office of the

Recorder of Hamilton County, Indiana; and

of the Bylaws which by law or the Articles of the Bylaws which require action by the of Bylaws of the Association by the Board of Directors, except with respect to any provisions WHEREAS, Section 14.1. of the Code of Bylaws permits the amendment of the Code

Homeowners Association per the provisions in Section 14.1; which was evidenced by a majority vote of the Members of The Enclave of Carmel WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has reviewed and affirmed the following Amendment to the Code of Bylaws for The Enclave of Carmel Homeowners Association

Association, Inc., hereby amends the Code of Bylaws as follows: NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to the foregoing, The Enclave of Carmel Homeowners

required to re-establish a staggering of terms, two [2] of the Directors shall be elected to Article VII, Section 7.3(b). Each Director shall be elected for a term of two (2) years, except that at the election of Directors at the first meeting of Members or at such time Article VII, Section 7.3 Election: Terms of Office and Vacancy is amended to read as follows: terms of two (2) years each. Thereafter, at each annual meeting of the Members, Directors serve terms of one $\{1\}$ year each and three (3) of the Directors shall be elected to serve Director shall hold office throughout the elected term and until a successor is elected and will be elected to serve for two (2) year terms. Directors may serve successive terms. Each

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Enclave of Carmel Homeowners Association, Inc. has executed this Amendment as of the date first written above

THE ENCLAVE OF CARMEL HOMEOWNERS

"I affirm, under the penalties for perfury, that I have ₽ Y: ASSOCIATION, INC. David Wg Teri Hecht, Secretary hillips, Vice President en Hech II, Treasure President

number in this document, unless required by Theresa J Hether MANAGE taken reasonable care to redact each Social Security

Prepared by Theresa J Hecht;

on Hurley, Directo

Page 1 of 2

Ÿ أذو

STATE OF INDIANA

COUNTY OF Ham I'm

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, this a state of the county and school of the county and acknowledged the county of the foregoing instrument.

and acknowledged the

Robin 17. Notary Public

My commission expires:

Prince Hasplant of Hon, How County

7-10-204





2012035092 AMENDMENT \$14.00 205/25/2012 01:18:09P 2 PGS Mary L. Clark HAMILTON County Recorder IN Recorded as Presented

AMENDMENT TO THE CODE OF BYLAWS OF THE ENCLAVE OF CARMEL HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

THIS AMENDMENT TO THE CODE OF BYLAWS OF THE ENCLAVE OF CARMEL HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. ("Amendment") IS MADE AS OF THIS 7th day of September, 2011 by the Enclave Board of Directors for The Enclave of Carmel Homeowners Association, Inc, an Indiana Corporation, witnesses as follows:

WHEREAS, the Code of Bylaws of the Enclave of Carmel Homeowners Association was recorded on December 4, 2002 as Instrument No. 200200093256 in the Office of the Recorder of Hamilton County, Indiana; and

WHEREAS, Section 14.1. of the Code of Bylaws permits the amendment of the Code of Bylaws of the Association by the Board of Directors, except with respect to any provisions of the Bylaws which by law or the Articles of the Bylaws which require action by the Members; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has reviewed and affirmed the following Amendment to the Code of Bylaws for The Enclave of Carmel Homeowners Association which was evidenced by a majority vote of the Board of Directors of The Enclave of Carmel Homeowners Association per the provisions in Section 14.1;

Homeowners Association per the provisions in Section 14.1;

NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to the foregoing, The Board of Directors of the Enclave of Carmel Homeowners Association, Inc., hereby amends the Code of Bylaws as follows:

Article VII, Section 7.1 Management is amended to read as follows:

Article VII. Section 7.1 Management. The business and affairs of the Association shall be governed and managed by the Board of Directors. The number of Directors shall be five (5). No person shall be eligible to serve as a member of the Board of Directors unless such person is, or is deemed in accordance with these Bylaws to be, an Owner and a Member in good standing.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Enclave of Carmel Homeowners Association, Inc. has executed this Amendment as of the date first written above

THE ENCLAYE OF CARMEL HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIATION, INC.

By:

Jim Monson, President

Jim Monson, President

Van Phillips, Vice President

There as on this doublent, unless required by law,

Theresa J Hecht, Jilland John Teasurer

David Woll, Treasurer

David Woll, Treasurer

David Woll, Treasurer

David Woll, Treasurer

Prepared by Theresa J Hechs:

HAMILTON,IN Document: BYL 2012.35092

Page 1 of 2

Printed on 10/10/2013 1:14:56 PM

STATE OF INDIANA

COUNTY OF Hom. Has

Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, this OSTA day of June , 2013, personally appeared

Theres J.H echt , Secretary of
Excluse of Corrol HOA , and acknowledged texecution of the foregoing instrument.

and acknowledged the

Roben on charten

Printhame: Rosdont of Ham. Han County

My commission expires:

DN L 10-2014